LETTER OPI NI ON
95-L-162

July 19, 1995

M. James D. G on

Hetti nger County State's Attorney
P. 0. Box 101

Regent, ND 58650-0101

RE: Posting Requirenents
Dear M. G on:
Thank you for your letter regardi ng posting requirenents.

Specifically you ask the follow ng questi ons:

1. Does N.D.C. C ? 20.1-01-17 require posting the
interior boundaries of a quarter section of land in
a section if all of the quarters in the section are
posted al ong the section |lines? and

2. Does N.D.C C ? 20.1-01-17 require posting the
interior boundaries of a quarter section of land in
a section where sonme, but not all of the quarters in
the section are posted along the section lines?

3. Does the fence referred to in ND.C.C ? 20.1-01-17
have to neet the definitions of a |egal fence as set
out in N.D.C.C ? 47-26-017 Does a fence have to
conpletely surround the posted area in order to
provide for posting at gates only on the sides
fenced?

If the land is owned by nore than one | andowner, the answer to
your first two questions is the sane. Even in the case where
all the quarters in the section are posted along the section
I ines, another |andowner nmay give perm ssion to a hunter to
hunt the land which is adjacent to, but not owned by, the
hypot hetical quarter section | andowner.

N.D.C.C. ? 20.1-01-17 states:
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Only the owner or tenant of any |land may post it by
pl aci ng signs alongside the public highway or the
| and giving notice that no hunting is permtted on
t he | and. The name of the person posting the | and
must appear on each sign in legible characters. The
signs nmust be readable from the outside of the |and
and nmust be placed conspicuously not nore than eight

hundred eighty vards (804.68 neters) apart. As to
land entirely enclosed by a fence or ot her
encl osure, posting of signs at or on_ all gates
t hrough the fence or enclosure constitutes a posting
of all the enclosed |and. No person may in any

manner deface, take down, or destroy posting signs.
(Enphasi s added.)

N.D.C.C. ? 20.1-01-17 requires that the posting signs nust be
"readable from the outside of the land.”" The outside of the
| and may exist on a section line or public highway or may abut
anot her | andowner's property within a section. In any event,
the signs nust be readable from the "outside of the |and" and
must not be nore than 880 yards apart. Al t hough sone courts
have taken into account the point at which a hunter enters the
section, to be truly enforceable, the |andowner should post
the interior portion of the quarter section either along the
interior boundary or at the interior corner to ensure that the
signs are readable from the "outside of the land." Agai n,
this is true even for land which is entirely posted by other
owners on the outside of the section because other |andowners
may grant perm ssion to hunt their land, and the placing of
the signs on the interior boundaries will allow hunters to
identify areas on which they do not have permn ssion from ot her
| andowners.

If the section is owned by one |andowner, proper posting on
the exterior will be sufficient for all land wthin.

In response to your third question, N.D.C. C ? 20.1-01-17
requires that land entirely enclosed by a fence or other
encl osure nust be posted on all gates. Hence, the fence nust
conpletely surround the posted area in order to provide for
t he gate-posting option. "Fence" is not defined within the
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statutes or rules relating to the Game and Fi sh Depart nent.

Di scussions with the Game and Fish Departnent indicate that
the legal definition of fence found in N.D.C.C. ? 47-26-01 has
not always been literally applied by courts enforcing the
fence posting requirenents. Key elenments that are considered
are that the fence conpletely surrounds the area and that the
fence is kept in relatively good naintenance. |If the fence is
servi ceabl e, then posting at all gates would neet the posting
requirenment of N.D.C.C. ? 20.1-01-17. However, if the fence
is in ill-repair or just portions of it remain, the |and nust
be posted in such a manner that signs are not nore than 880
yards apart and are readable fromthe outside of the | and.

I f you have any further questions regarding this issue, please
contact Assistant Attorney General Bill Delnore, who is
assigned to the Gane and Fi sh Departnent, at (701) 328-3640.

Si ncerely,

Hei di Heit kanp
ATTORNEY GENERAL
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